
Dixie State University 
Question and Answers – As of September 19, 2016 (FINAL) 

Life and Disability Insurance 
 

1. Does the University consider Retirees Eligible for the Group Life?  If so, please provide 
their Booklet. 

 
No, the University does not consider Retirees eligible for Group Life insurance. 
 
2. Does the University intend to share the Historical/Current/Renewal Rates for the Group 

Life, Voluntary Life, and LTD? 
 
Yes, the rates are included as a supplemental Excel Document sent with these questions 
entitled “DSU Life-Disability Rate History.” 

 
3. Does the University have additional information regarding what MAPB stands for? 
 
Yes, MAPB stands for “Monthly Annuity Premium Benefit.” 
 
4. Does the University intend to share LTD experience, back to 7/1/2011? 
 
The University has shared all available LTD experience information as Appendix B.  If you 
have not received this data, please contact the University’s benefits consultant, HUB 
International. You may email Katie Keil (katie.keil@hubinternational.com) or Delbert Mulvey 
(delbert.mulvey@hubinternational.com). 
 
5. Does the University have a desired Short Term Disability plan design? 

 
Yes.  The University has provided the requested plan design options in  Section 7 of the 
RFP document.  Please see provision 7.44 of the DSU Life and Disability RFP. 
 
6. Can the University confirm that the 100% Line of Duty benefit is available only to 

campus security (police) officers? 
 
Yes.  The 100% Line of Duty benefit is available only to campus police officers and the 
University’s Fire Marshal (who is currently the Director of Risk Management at DSU and not 
a stand-alone position like campus police officers). 

 
7. On the waiver of premium on the life benefit: is the University wanting it to remain at age 

70 or move to Social Security Normal Retirement Age (SSNRA)? 
 
The University is considering moving to SSNRA for future LTD claims but would ask 
respondents to quote both age 70 and SSNRA; any existing LTD claims would be 
grandfathered into the current contract. 

 
8. Does the group participate in Social Security and if so, is SS offsettable on the disability? 
 
Yes, Dixie State University does participate in Social Security.  Any Social Security received 
(either regular or Social Security disability) would offset disability payments up to the 2/3 
salary maximum. 

 



9. Can clarification be given on census column I? 
 
Column I on the census does refer to health insurance coverage levels (single, two-party, 
and family). 

 
10. RFP mentions all quotes be compliant with URS guidelines, specifically the requirement 

for the LTD elimination period.  Will the incumbent be required to move to an elimination 
period that matches URS? 

 
As is mentioned in the RFP 6.31, the University’s current elimination period is 180 days 
(which exceeds URS rules).  Any proposals submitted must match this 180 day elimination 
period. 
 
Updated 9/16/2016: After further consideration, the University is requesting that all 
vendors submit a long-term disability proposal that includes a 120 day elimination 
period instead of the 180 day elimination period.  We apologize for any confusion. 

 
11. Can the University explain why the census provided includes 18 employees that are 

listed with “no disability coverage?”  Should these individuals be excluded from the 
underwriting process? 

 
These 18 employees listed at the top of the census are employees who were still active at 
the time the census file was created but have future end dates (e.g. have given notice they 
will be leaving employment); as such, they will not have coverage by the time our RFP 
closes to the market.  However, they represent a headcount of employees that will be on our 
plan so we felt including them would allow the market to see appropriate headcount of DSU 
employees. 

 
12. Will the University explain why the census provided includes 34 employees listed as “not 

actively at work?”  Should these individuals be excluded from the underwriting process? 
 

See answer to #11 for the first group; the remaining are early retirees which are allowed 
only certain benefits (specifically health insurance coverage) while on early retirement.  They 
do not receive life nor disability benefits as early retirees so those products can exclude 
them from headcount – they were included on the census due to DSU’s other RFP for dental 
& vision (where they do have coverage). 

 
13. With regard to Class 2 – Former employees with severance agreements whose amounts 

are on file: will the University share details of the severance agreements so that we can 
analyze the potential exposure during our underwriting process? 

 
Yes.  Currently, the University only has one individual with a severance agreement.  The 
details of that agreement are: 

 Individual Date of Birth: 12/21/1957 

 Individual Gender: Female 

 Length of benefit, per agreement terms: through age 65  

 Amount of benefit, per agreement terms: $50,000 basic life insurance coverage 
only (no LTD coverage) 
 



14. Will the University confirm the desired LTD plan design?  There is currently a 5 yr 
Benefit Period on the LTD plan however the RFP requests SS ADEA which is a 
significant change from the current contract. 

 
The University wants vendors to provide a cost proposal that matches the disability 
schedule outlined below, and a separate cost proposal that provides a disability benefit until 
Social Security Normal Retirement Age (SSNRA). 
 

 
 

15. Can the University confirm that the STD will be a new benefit?  Do you currently have an 
extended sick leave program?  If so, what will happen with those sick leave balances?  If 
they will offset the new STD, please provide a census with sick bank hours for each 
employee. 
 

Yes – the University is considering introducing a new voluntary Short Term Disability 
program that will be paid 100% by the employees who elect to purchase it. 
 
The University does have an extended sick leave policy. 
 
The  University does not “bank” sick leave time.  Any sick leave used beyond that which is 
accrued by the employee must be approved through a formal process in place with the 
University. 
 
The University will not be providing a census with sick leave balance hours. 

 
16. Will the University provide a Life claims experience report, by month stating Live, paid 

premium and paid claims? 
 
The life insurance premium information is provided in the attached report.  Neither the 
premium nor claims are available on a monthly basis.  Please proceed with the information 
provided. 

 
17. Will the University be able to provide the LTD claims, enrollment, and premium report by 

month? 
 

No.  This information is not available on a monthly basis.  Please proceed with the 
information provided. 
 



18. Will the University provide a copy of the cost proposal template that vendors should 
complete for the life and disability programs? 

 
Yes – a copy of this template is attached for your use. 
 
19. Does the University participate in any PERS or STRS program?  If so , is it used as an 

offset to their LTD benefits? 
 
University employees have employer-funded retirement either through TIAA or Utah 
Retirement Systems.  In the event of TIAA, a separate annuity is created when the 
employee goes on long-term disability (see Life & Disability Rate History – Monthly Annuity 
Benefit).  In the event of Utah Retirement Systems, service credit is already built into their 
rate for LTD cases. 
 
20. The RFP notes that there are two life classes, yet the census and certificate only shows 

the single benefit.  Is the one benefit correct? 
 
Yes; while other plans may have grandfathering provisions, we have only one life product 
available to all employees at the coverage levels provided within the census. 
 


